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scope anD reporting bounDarY
The information presented in this report describes 
the South African Institute of Professional Accountants 
(SAIPA) and the fi ve regions that make up the 
national footprint, including their associated 
districts. The overall scope is consistent with what 
was covered in 2013, although at that stage, the 
regions and districts were not the same as they 
currently are. From 2014, the fi ve main regions are 
the Northern region, Central region, Eastern region, 
Western region and Southern region.

This report presents the activities and annual 
fi nancial statements of SAIPA for the year end 
31 December 2014. It also describes the strategic 
focus and how this aligns with the way that SAIPA 
creates value. We discuss our business, issues 
within the environment, risks and opportunities.

In summary, the report presents material information
needed for stakeholders to understand SAIPA.

DisclaiMer
Some of the statements in the Annual Integrated 
Report constitute forward-looking statements. 
These are not guarantees or predictions of future 
performance. As discussed in the report, the business 
faces risks and factors outside of our control, which 
may lead to outcomes unforeseen by SAIPA. These are 
not refl ected in the report. Readers are warned not to 
place undue reliance on forward-looking statements.

assurance
The Annual Financial Statements have been audited 
by our external auditors. At this stage, we have not 
sought independent verifi cation of the other metrics 
reported in our Annual Integrated Report.

feeDbacK
SAIPA would welcome your feedback on the Annual 
Integrated Report. Please email your comments and 
suggestions to air@saipa.co.za.

| FOREWORD  2



AbOUT SAIPA | 02

SAIPA TM

Y O U R  W E A L T H

FOREWORD | 3



 contents
 | CONTENTS   4



AbOUT SAIPA | 02

06 About SAIPA

22 Governance

32 Creating Value

44 Issues, Risks and 
Opportunities

52 Performance Summary

64 Annual Financial 
Statements

 CONTENTS
CONTENTS |  5



 | AbOUT SAIPA6



AbOUT SAIPA | 02AbOUT SAIPA |  7



glanceglance
 | SAIPA AT A GLANCE

The South African Institute of Professional Accountants (SAIPA) is one of the leading 
accountancy institutes, representing and supporting its members to fulfi l the 
increasing demands of business in South Africa’s growing economy by equipping 
the Professional Accountant (SA) with the latest knowledge, techniques and 
accreditation required to render key services. 

SAIPA has been a pioneer in the South African economy, contributing to the 
advancement of the accountancy profession, infl uencing legislation and 
constantly transforming to keep abreast of business, fi nancial and social 
developments in the country and internationally.

SAIPA is a member of the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) and the 
Pan African Federation of Accountants (PAFA). SAIPA qualifi cations are nationally 
recognised at Level 8 by the National Qualifi cations Framework (NQF) in terms of 
the South African Qualifi cations Authority (SAQA).
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To be the

of choice.professional 
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To optimise the 

success of the

in the public interest.
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• Ethics

• Professionalism

• Excellence

• Value people
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chairMan’s
report

by Shirley Olsen

“Those that are considered successful in our day take 
more from life than they return. But those of value give 
more that they receive”. - Albert Einstein

This being my last report as Chairman of SAIPA, I wish to 
use the opportunity to look back at the SAIPA journey 
since its establishment in the latter part of the past 
century. In what amounts to a relatively short history, 
SAIPA has succeeded in carving out an increasingly 
prominent and infl uential presence in the national 
and international accountancy profession. Despite at 
times having to navigate very stormy and inhospitable 
waters, SAIPA today is a force to be reckoned with, 
its increasingly infl uential voice reverberating way 
beyond the South African landscape. From an often 
much maligned, near outsider status, SAIPA today is 
recognised and respected as a key factor en route to 
the achievement of South Africa’s desired economic 
future.

Despite its humble beginning, when it was created 
as a home for accountants that are primarily 
focused on small and medium enterprises, it has 
transcended this goal, fi rmly establishing itself as a 
crucial cog in the South African economy. Whereas 
SAIPA members may previously have experienced 
a sense of inferiority, the majority have today shed 
this feeling, as they have every reason to confi dently 
stand shoulder to shoulder with fellow accountants 
in the profession, the service they provide to South 
Africa and its people being of an increasing quality 
and relevance.

During its short history, SAIPA has rapidly grown to 
become one of the largest IFAC accredited South 
African accountancy bodies, serving more than 10,000 
members, which are increasingly representative of 
the demographic profi le of our country. Whereas 
most members may in the early years have primarily 
performed what are often described as mere ‘bean 
counting’ tasks, this is today no longer the case, as an 
ever-larger percentage are adopting a value adding 
advisory role.

After our organisation was rebranded as SAIPA in 
2006, and the designation Professional Accountant 
(SA) introduced, SAIPA’s image and infl uence has
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rapidly expanded. The concerted efforts of its board 
members, Chief Executive and his staff in no small 
measure contributed to SAIPA acquiring an ever 
higher standing amongst its peers, and today being 
increasingly respected by the Government and 
other stakeholders. The recent ROSC report by the 
World bank underscores the fact that SAIPA is today 
seen to be an infl uential player, and is consequently 
consulted when input and comments are required 
with regard to proposed legislation and regulations. 

“SAIPA has rapidly 
grown to become 
one of the largest 
IFAC accredited 

South African 
accountancy 

bodies...”

In order to further bolster its presence in the 
accountancy profession, SAIPA regularly produces 
thought-provoking papers and publications, which 
are not only distributed to our members, but also 
fi nd their way to the desks of all our stakeholders, 
as well as the media. This has contributed to SAIPA 
increasingly being seen as a thought leader in its 
areas of expertise, nationally and internationally.

The astonishing success we continue to achieve 
with the National Accounting Olympiad, which was 
launched 14 years ago, and which has gone from 
strength to strength, I experience as a great source 
of pride. The 370 schools that participated in 2014 
attest to our commitment to continuously grow the 
Olympiad as a means of encouraging learners from 
all communities to enroll for SAIPA accredited tertiary 
courses in the fi eld of accounting. In our efforts to 

continuously improve and expand the Olympiad 
as a fl agship initiative, we continue to work tirelessly 
together with our regional structures, schools and 
tertiary institutions.

During my tenure, the board invested a great 
degree of time and energy in strengthening SAIPA’s 
governance requirements and structures. To ensure 
that SAIPA is a worthy member organisation, the 
board recognises the importance of SAIPA projecting 
a responsible image to all our stakeholders. The 
board has consequently invested in maintaining our 
Level 1 bbbEE rating and as a member of Ethics SA, 
all staff in the responsible department were trained 
as Ethics Offi cers. In addition to this, a Social and 
Ethics Committee was introduced as well as an 
ethics workplan grid. Furthermore, the Nominations 
Committee formed in 2013 introduced a nomination 
procedure and process for the selection and 
appointment of new board members and the board 
Chairman, as well as for the SAIPA Investigations 
Committee (IC), Disciplinary Committee (DC), and 
Appeals Committee (AC). To optimally align SAIPA’s 
constitution to taxation requirements, 17 taxation 
related amendments were also passed at a Special 
General meeting (SGm).

Recently, SAIPA successfully passed an ISO 9001 
Audit, reconfi rming its whole-hearted commitment 
to quality service. Although this is a very meaningful 
achievement, the board, together with the Chief 
Executive, will continue to strive towards improving 
SAIPA’s service delivery.

Whereas change is often a painful and challenging 
process, our regions have admirably stepped up to 
the plate in implementing a revised regional structure, 
as well as the launch of the Regional and District 
Association Committee (RADAC) in October 2014. 
The board remains convinced that the new District 
dispensation, and the new fi ve Regional Associations, 
each with their own full-time Regional Administrator, 
will empower the Secretariat and our regions to better 
serve the diverse needs of our members. To further 
bolster the regions and ensure differentiated services 
to our members, eight new districts were established 
during 2014, four in the Western region and four in the 
Eastern region.
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As one of only two South African professional 
accountancy organisations with IFAC accreditation, 
and one of the fi ve biggest professional accountancy 
organisations in Africa. It is of crucial importance 
that SAIPA participates in international structures, 
spreading its wings and infl uence beyond South 
Africa. To this effect SAIPA:
• occupies a seat on the board of the Pan African 
  Federation of Accountants (PAFA);
• in 2012 hosted an International Accounting 
  Education Standard Setters board (IAESb) 
  meeting, and an IFAC Council meeting;
• presented papers at the 2010 and 2014 World 
  Congress of Accountants (WCOA);
• between 2008 and 2013 was represented on the 
  International Accounting Education Standard   
 board (IAESb); and
• has entered into six memoranda of Understanding
  (mOUs)
 •  Association of National Accountants of Nigeria  
  (ANAN) 
 •  Certifi ed Public accountants (Ireland) –   
  CPA Ireland 
 • Institute of Public Accountants – IPA Australia  
 •  Institute of Financial Accountants (UK) – IFA UK  
 • Institute of Professional Accountants 
  of Samara Region – SIPA Russia 
 •  Namibia Institute of Professional Accountants –  
  NIPA Namibia.
 
Words defy my appreciation for this wonderful 
home that those who went before me have built for 
accountants and tax professionals. Today we are 
immensely proud of their achievements in creating an 
environment within which our members have been 
elevated to a status where they today not only stand 
shoulder to shoulder with others in the profession, but 
are also locally and internationally recognised for 
their unique skills. 

Although we celebrate these advances, this should, 
however, not become the reason for complacency. 
In our constantly changing world, today’s successes 
are mere blips on the radar screens that very rapidly 
become tomorrow’s irrelevance. We are aware that 
we need to continually build upon the gains we have 
made, and not let up for one moment in our quest 
to stay ahead of the curve. As the board, working 
together with the Secretariat, we are duty bound, 
no matter how unpalatable the news may be, to 
keep reminding our members of their responsibility to 
continuously reinvent themselves by way of lifelong 
learning. As an organisation, SAIPA is only as strong as 
the collective strength of its members. 

“Our payoff line of 
‘creating stakeholder 
wealth’ remains our 

guiding light.”
Our payoff line of “Creating Stakeholder Wealth” 
remains our guiding light. This does not only 
necessitate that we stay on the course we have 
charted, but that we also further strengthen our 
resolve to transform the accountancy profession 
to the extent that disadvantaged communities are 
afforded the opportunity of entering the profession 
and afforded the very best opportunities to express 
their full potential. Although we be can be proud of 
what we have thus far achieved, we should also be 
the fi rst to admit that these achievements are but 
fi rst steps on a long and challenging road. To be a 
home to all aspiring South African accountants and 
optimally serve all South Africans, it is essential that we 

Although we celebrate these advances, this should, 
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made, and not let up for one moment in our quest 
to stay ahead of the curve. As the board, working 
together with the Secretariat, we are duty bound, 
no matter how unpalatable the news may be, to 
keep reminding our members of their responsibility to 
continuously reinvent themselves by way of lifelong 
learning. As an organisation, SAIPA is only as strong as 

“Our payoff line of 
‘creating stakeholder 
wealth’ remains our 
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continue to vigorously pursue transformation to the 
point where we truly refl ect the diverse population of 
our country.

SAIPA’s strategy and the operationalisation of 
this strategy is premised on our understanding 
that small business, our area of expertise, is the 
key to growing our economy and delivering the 
employment opportunities that are so lacking at this 
time. Consequently, we are committed to seeing 
our members’ transition from ‘bean counting’ tasks 
to becoming value-enhancing business advisors. 
Although this message may be an anathema to 
some of our members, we will not fall prey to the 
temptation to merely comfort the affl icted. We will 
humbly suffer their recriminations, in the knowledge 
that the majority of our members expect of us to fulfi ll 
an early warning role in this regard. There are far too 
many examples of organisations that choose to bury 
their heads in the sand and are consequently washed 
on the beaches of irrelevance.

Having made great strides towards our growth 
goal, I’m honoured to report that SAIPA is in good 
fi nancial shape. I applaud the Chief Executive and 
his dedicated staff for their tireless commitment to 
the implementation of the board approved strategy. 
Despite staffi ng challenges, the Secretariat have, 
with support and oversight from the board, performed 
admirably.

The success I have been privileged to enjoy during 
my tenure was only possible due to the unconditional 
support afforded to me by my fellow board members. 
In years to come, I will look back with very fond 
memories of the commitment and loyalty I enjoyed. 
Our common love for SAIPA bound us together in our 
commitment to the task entrusted to us by our fellow 
members. As the new Chairman and board prepare 

to accept the baton for the next leg of this never-
ending relay, I extend to them my very best wishes.

To the Chief Executive and his team, I express my 
sincere appreciation for their loyalty and the excellent 
service they so tirelessly render. On behalf of the 
board and all our members, I wish to assure them that 
their unwavering commitment is duly appreciated. 
To work so closely with them during the past three 
years was a great honour.

Although I will remain active in other structures of the 
Institute, I look forward to now devoting more of my 
time to my other responsibilities and love of training. 
my love for SAIPA will, however, always burn brightly.
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chief 
eXecutive’s
report

by Shahied Daniels

It is truly amazing that another year has fl ashed by, 
leaving in its wake yet more challenges to be faced 
by the fi nancial world. Seldom has a fi nancial crisis 
so stubbornly persisted despite the plethora of painful 
and radical measures that have been taken to 
restore fi nancial stability and growth. 

Where the primary focus of the world’s national 
banks was previously on preventing infl ation, their 
emphasis after 2008 increasingly shifted towards 
encouraging infl ation as a means of preventing a 
reoccurrence of the defl ationary cycle in which the 
Japanese economy has been ensnared. Regardless 
of the billions of dollars, euros, yuans and other 
currencies that have been pumped into economies 
to reignite growth, very little of a sustainable nature 
seems to have been achieved. Apart from the United 
States and the United Kingdom, most countries have 
continued to experience lackluster to negative 
growth. Even China, which for decades has been the 
primary engine of global growth, has experienced 
an alarming downward curve in its growth fi gures, 
which has heavily impacted commodity producing 
countries, e.g. South Africa, brazil and Australia. 
Fortunately for South Africa, the oil price has also 
recently edged sharply downward and is affording 
us some respite. 

Every time analysts tell us that there is a light at the 
end of the tunnel, some or other destabilising turn of 
events suddenly snuffs out this little fl ame of hope, e.g. 
the renewed Greek crisis due to the Syria government 
refusing to negotiate Greece’s debt repayment with 
the so-called troika, demanding that 50% of its debt 
be written off, despite the fact that there had been 
massive debt forgiveness at the time when a bailout 
was negotiated.

Whereas the accounting profession has always, 
despite recent hiccups, been regarded as a very 
important link in the economy, it is crucial that we 
take note of the fact that the traditional role of the 
accountant is radically changing. These changes are 
compelling all players within the profession to return 
to the drawing board to re-envision and reinvent their 
roles. 
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“...The new SAIPA 
Constitution... has 
greatly improved 

our corporate 
governance, 

especially 
with regard to 

accountability and 
transparency.”

These changes are not only due to new demands 
that are coming to the fore, but are also increasingly 
driven by an avalanche of sophisticated software 
packages and apps that are literally consuming 
traditional accountancy roles. Staying ahead of this 
change curve is the only antidote. Regardless of how 
old or experienced we are, there is no alternative to 
an unconditional commitment to lifelong learning. 

In addition to the need to comply with Continuous 
Professional Development (CPD) requirements, we 
have no choice but to engage in extended formal 
education, and to also continuously keep abreast 
of developments in the fi nancial and professional 
environments.

general iMproveMents in our 
MeMber services
For SAIPA, 2014 has been a challenging year, which 
has thankfully spawned an upward growth curve. 
Despite vacancies in a number of key managerial 
positions, we rose to the challenge, greatly improving 
our service delivery to our members and other 
stakeholders. Finding suitably qualifi ed persons to fi ll 
these positions is increasingly diffi cult, yet we thankfully 

were able to fi ll the vacancies with highly motivated 
new appointees that have hit the road running, and 
are doing sterling work. maintaining the standard of 
service delivery to which we aspire was, however, 
complicated by resignations, and by unavoidable 
separation agreements. Unfortunately, ambition and 
the lure of the market are beyond our ability to resist.

During the year, the new SAIPA Constitution, which was 
approved in 2013, was implemented. This has greatly 
improved our corporate governance, especially 
with regard to accountability and transparency. To 
augment our commitment in this regard, we also 
established a Social and Ethics Committee (SEC). 

Furthermore, the Chairman’s Committee for the 
Regions (CHARCO) was transformed to the Regional 
and District Associations Committee (RADAC), with 
the inaugural meeting of this new body having taken 
place in October 2014. The new districts that have 
been established, primarily in the Western, Central 
and Eastern regions, will further strengthen the area- 
specifi c services we endeavor to provide to our 
regions. Together with the regions, we are working to 
bring relevant CPDs to the districts, liaise with local 
authorities on issues concerning our members, and 
facilitate networking opportunities with accounting 
professionals. We greatly appreciate the valuable 
contributions that are made by our regional structures.

During the year, a new Customer Relations 
management (CRm) system was implemented, 
the SAIPA briefcase, which affords members a 24/7 
opportunity to log into the system and manage their 
profi les, log their CPD hours, register for upcoming 
events and access the client care functionality. 
We look forward to members making full use of this 
system.

international representation
SAIPA continues to expand its international presence 
and impact, thereby further strengthening its standing 
within the profession, and the respect it commands 
locally. During the year, I was privileged to attend 
the following conferences and meetings, ensuring 
that SAIPA is seen and respected as a foremost 
professional organisation in Africa and beyond:
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• The World Congress of Accountants (WCOA) in   
 Rome, Italy, where I presented a paper on   
 the Perspectives from member body CEOs –   
 21st Century Professional Accountant (SA);
• The International Association for Accounting   
 Educators and Research (IAAER) in Florence,   
 Italy, where I chaired a session on Forensic   
 Accounting; 
• An International Federation of accountants (IFAC) 
 Annual General meeting (AGm), and two Special  
 General meetings (SGms) relating to the IFAC   
 constitution and the IFAC fee model; and
• Four Pan African Federation of Accountants (PAFA)
 meetings to strengthen our leadership role 
 in Africa.

Furthermore, the Technical Executive had the honour 
of doing a presentation in Cape Town to the African 
Association of Finance Accountants (AAFA) on 
behalf of PAFA, participating in the AbASA annual 
conference, and in the International Accounting 
Standards board (IASb) and the International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) conference.

During the year, SAIPA also paid attention to further 
strengthening the relationship with our memorandum 
of Understanding (mOU) partners.

DepartMental DevelopMents 
finance
In may, we welcomed our new Finance manager 
who has been a breath of fresh air, inspiring his team 
to improve the processes in his department. His goal 
is to forthwith devote due attention to Supply Chain 
management, which has been an area where we 
are lacking.

legal, ethics anD coMpliance
In order to meet our constitutional obligations, 
new structures, procedures and processes were 
implemented in relation to the SAIPA Investigations 
Committee (IC), Disciplinary Committee (DC), and 
the Appeals Committee (AC). To enhance the 
performance of these committees, new Terms of 
Reference (TORs) were drawn up, and all committee 
members were trained for their specifi c responsibilities.
To ensure that SAIPA retains its tax exempt status, 
a successful SGm was called to discuss SAIPA 
constitution.

The Institute was subjected to an ISO 9001 audit, 
whereupon major and minor fi ndings have been 
addressed. To bolster our adherence to the ISO 
9001:2008 requirements, all Legal, Ethics and 
Compliance (LEC) staff were afforded training for the 
required ISO 9001:2008 internal audits.

“We are proud to 
have maintained our 
Level 1 B-BBEE rating, 
NPO status, as well as 
our   membership of 
Ethics SA and IFAC.” 
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We are proud to have maintained our Level 1 b-bbEE 
rating, NPO status, as well as our membership of Ethics 
SA and IFAC. In order to fulfi l its role as the Secretariat 
for the Social and Ethics Committee, an employee 
from the LEC department underwent training to 
become an Ethics Offi cer. A policy and procedure 
manual and a grid for mapping the implementation 
of ethics requirements within the Institute were also 
developed. 

Together with a leading commercial law fi rm, Norton 
Rose Fulbright, SAIPA for the sixth year sponsored 
a successful National Tax Thesis Competition to 
promote tax research, grow the database of taxation 
knowledge, contribute to the debate of taxation 
policy, and highlight the role of taxation to the 
economy. The winners were announced at a special 
function where various tax experts and academics 
were present.

cote
The SAIPA Centre of Tax Excellence (CoTE) has 
continued to add value to our members by providing 
assistance in dealing with the challenges related to 
the SARS single registration process. 

MeMber services anD benefits
As previously noted, SAIPA has successfully 
implemented a CRm tool to enhance our relationship 
with members. The uptake has been very pleasing.

Two cutting-edge technology products unique to 
SAIPA, SmEasy and FinFind, were showcased in the 
Project Gallery at the WCOA, eliciting widespread 
interest.

SAIPA members have been given the unique 
opportunity to sign up for SAIPA Assetsure, a one-
of-a-kind insurance, at rates that are 50% below 
market rates, thereby securing them cover for all their 
practice related assets. In addition to the substantial 
Professional Insurance (PI) cover SAIPA members 
enjoy, they now also enjoy free Director and Offi cer 
Liability Cover for R2 million.

huMan resources
In 2014, the SAIPA strategy was revised to ensure 
that the Institute is well positioned to continue 
growing and transforming the profession, strengthen 
our stakeholder relationships, and enhance the 
competence and capability of our members and the 
Secretariat staff.

Following up on a 2014 performance and 
organisational review, which involved revisiting the 
strategy, structure, processes, people and rewards, 
the Institute is now in the process of creating a high 
performance organisation to more effi ciently and 
effectively serve our members and other stakeholders.

national accounting olYMpiaD
Our National Accounting Olympiad, which has 
gone from strength to strength in our continuing 
endeavor to transform the accountancy profession, 
now accommodates government and other schools. 
In 2014, fi ve SAIPA regions participated, ensuring 
a record of 2,819 entrants from 370 schools. The 
six national winners were hosted at a gala dinner 
attended by high profi le leaders from government 
and the private sector.
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technical stanDarDs – 
subMissions, papers anD 
publications
During the year, SAIPA submitted comments to the 
relevant authorities relating to the following matters:

• The Immigrations bill in which SAIPA members are  
 designated as approved accountants to    
 assist clients in complying with fi nancial reporting   
 related to immigration; 
• The Justice Department on the change to the   
 prescribed interest rates;
• The Treasury on tax free non-retirement savings;
• The Davis Committee on taxation;
• The Income Tax Returns (ITR) for Trusts; and
• The Tax Amendment bill, specifi cally those   
 sections relating to the Income Tax Act.

“SAIPA maintains 
its rightful place 

within the national 
and international 

accountancy 
communities, but 

simultaneously also 
affords our members 

the best possible 
service.”

During the year, SAIPA also produced the following 
papers and publications:

• A research paper on: The matric Results and the   
 implications for the Financial Sector in South Africa;
• A research paper on: Doing business in    
 Sub-Saharan Africa;
• A research paper on: New evidence on the brain  
 Drain from South Africa;
• A research paper on: SmEs and Entrepreneurships  
 as Drivers of Job Creation in South Africa;
• A research paper on: Access to fi nance for   
 entrepreneurs and SmEs;
• A research paper on: Accreditation vs.    
 Endorsement vs. Promotion vs. Preferred Product   
 and Service suppliers;
• A research paper on: Thought Leadership;
• A paper on the Regulation of the Accountancy   
 Profession;
• Quarterly research watch reports;
• A report on: The Profi le of a SAIPA member;
• A paper on: A Profi le of SAIPA;
• An article on: The War on Talent – Shortages of   
 Financial Skills in South Africa;
• A report: The SAIPA Entrepreneurship Report;
• An article on: Research relating to SmPs and SmEs;
• The SAIPA SmP Survey Report;
• The 2013 and 2014 SAIPA Client Satisfaction   
 Surveys; and
• Input on IFAC’s IESbA proposed changes.

The Secretariat remains as resolute as ever in its 
commitment to ensure that SAIPA maintains its 
rightful place within the national and international 
accountancy communities, but simultaneously 
also affords our members the best possible service. 
Where we at times may disappoint, this is not due to 
a lack of commitment by our highly dedicated staff. 
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Although it is their passion to meet the diverse needs 
of all our members, they are unfortunately limited by 
the resources at their disposal. To use a well-known 
expression, we can only cut our coat according to 
our cloth.

To my highly committed and dedicated staff, I wish 
to express my deep appreciation for their willingness 
to ever so frequently walk the proverbial extra mile. 
Although I am saddened when there are those who 
choose to advance their careers elsewhere, I fully 
appreciate that they need to seek opportunities that 
afford them extended career paths.

I am also truly thankful to the Chairman, the board, 
the Executive Committee and all board Committees 
for the advice and guidance they provide. Their 
selfl ess commitment to serving our members deserves 
our heartfelt appreciation.

Having nurtured SAIPA from a diffi cult childhood to 
where it today is in its adolescent years, it now needs 
to gradually grow towards full maturity. Although we 
cannot predict the future, I am confi dent that SAIPA 
will, as it is increasingly doing, carve a truly unique 
niche for itself within the accountancy profession. As 
the Chief Executive, I am greatly honoured to be part 
of this exciting journey.
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corporate
governance
report introDuction 

SAIPA is committed to high standards of corporate 
governance and the board is fully committed to 
creating value for members in a balanced, ethical 
and sustainable manner. The board seeks to ensure 
that good governance is practiced at all levels and 
that it is an integral part of SAIPA’s operations.

The board is the focal point of SAIPA’s corporate 
governance system and remains ultimately 
accountable and responsible for its performance 
and affairs. The Board endorses the principle of 
openness, integrity, sustainability, transparency, 
fairness, responsibility and accountability advocated 
by the King Code of Governance for South Africa, 
King III.

the boarD
The board currently has thirteen members. The board 
is led by ms. Shirley Olsen as Chairman. The Chief 
Executive is mr. Shahied Daniels.

The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the board 
and for ensuring that the board plays an effective 
role. She ensures appropriate communication with 
stakeholders and facilitates constructive relations 
between management and the board. The Chief 
Executive’s principal role is to provide leadership to 
the executive team in running SAIPA’s business.

The board ensures that SAIPA is managed effectively 
in accordance with corporate governance best 
practice and higher ethical standards. The charter 
is reviewed annually and sets out the specifi c 
responsibilities to be collectively discharged by board 
members as well as the individual roles expected of 
Board members.

The board meets quarterly. Additional board 
meetings, apart from those planned, are convened 
as circumstances dictate. The meeting attendance 
schedule is set out as follows:
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boarD coMMittees
A number of board-appointed committees have 
been established to assist the board in discharging 
its responsibilities. Specifi c responsibilities have been 
delegated to the board committees and they 
operate under written terms of reference approved 
by the board. Each committee’s terms of reference 
are reviewed annually by the board. 

Notwithstanding the establishment of the various 
committees, the board reserves for itself a range of 
key matters to ensure that it retains proper direction 
and control of SAIPA.

The board is of the view that all the board committees 
have effectively discharged their responsibilities, as 
contained in their respective terms of reference.

eXecutive coMMittee
The primary role of the Executive Committee (Exco) is 
to provide support and advice to the Chief Executive 
on strategic and, if needed, operational matters. The 
members of Exco are appointed by the board, and 
consist of four members of the board. Exco meets at 

least four times per annum, and the 
Chairman reports formally to the board 
on its proceedings after each meeting. 

auDit anD risK coMMittee
The primary role of the Audit 
and Risk Committee (ARC) is to 
assist the board in discharging its 
responsibility in safeguarding the 
institute’s assets, maintaining adequate 
accounting records and developing 
and maintaining an effective risk 
management strategy to manage 
internal control. The ARC, in carrying 
out its duties, has due regard to the 
principles of governance and code of 
best practice contained in the King III.

The ARC comprises of two board 
members who are full members of 
SAIPA, and none of whom is a Chairman 
or Deputy Chairman of the board, and 
one full member of SAIPA, independent 
of the board and management, and 
two independent non-SAIPA members.

The ARC’s main responsibilities include overseeing 
SAIPA’s risk management program, the effectiveness 
of internal control, and adequacy, reliability and 
accuracy of fi nancial information provided. 

“The Board seeks 
to ensure that good 

governance is 
practiced at all 

levels and that it is 
an integral part of 

SAIPA’s operations.”

name of board Member number of Meetings 
attended

ms Shirley Olsen - Chairman 4/4

ms Cindy Dibete - Deputy Chairman 4/4

mr Hashim Salie 4/4   

mr Shahied Daniels 4/4

mr Ram Naidoo 4/4

ms Vuyelwa Sangoni 3/4

ms Nontobeko Ntsinde 4/4

mr Altaaf Parker 4/4
mr Hein Pretorius 4/4    

mr muhammad Seedat 4/4

mr benjamin Tamba 3/4

mr Thami Khubeka 4/4
mr Avhashoni Ramikosi 4/4
mr Richard Ludwig (observer) 4/4
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huMan resources coMMittee
The Human Resources Committee (HRC) was 
established to determine executive management 
remuneration and the remuneration policy framework 
and making recommendations to the board. This is 
to ensure that executive remuneration and human 
resources policies and practice are in accordance 
with best corporate practice. 

“The Board endorses 
the principle of 

openness, integrity, 
sustainability, 
transparency, 

fairness, responsibility 
and accountability...”
 

noMinations coMMittee
The primary function of the Nominations Committee 
(Nomcom) is to recommend candidates for 
election or appointment to the SAIPA Board and 
its committees, as well as to establish and operate 
a process of continual assessment and review of 
the profi le, membership and needs of the board 
and its Committees in terms of the essential and 
desirable skills, competences and other qualities of 
their (the board’s and its Committees’) members, 
with due regard to the need for diversity, racial and 
gender equality and sound corporate governance 
prescribed in the SAIPA Constitution.

Nomcom comprises of six members appointed by 
the board, namely - the Chairman of the board; one 
other board member; one SAIPA member who is not 
a member of staff of SAIPA, or a member of the Board 
or a person who has been a member of the board 
during the previous three calendar years; two other 
persons who are not SAIPA members of any category 
or otherwise connected with or related to SAIPA, and 
the Chief Executive who is an ex offi cio member.

social & ethics coMMittee
The Social and Ethics Committee (SEC) was 
established at the beginning of 2014 to comply with 
the requirements of King III. Under the guidance of 
Professor Rossouw, we have designed a matrix that 
suits the current SAIPA model. As a collective, input 
was provided as to the required reporting documents 
for each quadrant of the matrix. A work plan has 
also been developed and was tabled at the SEC 
for approval which consists of reports on a quarterly 
basis. These reports will identify the status of our 
ethical footprint. 

investigations coMMittee
Since July 2014, this committee has investigated 
and made recommendations on Thirty matters. It is 
tasked with ensuring that members remain compliant 
with the Constitution, by-laws, Code of Conduct 
and applicable policies. With assistance from the 
Legal Department, through investigations, practice 
site visits and compliance checks, the committee 
makes informed decisions. Where matters relate to 
gross negligence, they are referred to the Disciplinary 
Committee.
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DisciplinarY coMMittee
We held a Disciplinary Committee (DC) meeting at 
the end of march 2015. This was the fi rst DC since 
September 2013 and there were only three matters 
on the roll which signifi es the level of compliance and 
ethical standards of our members. The committee 
comprises three external presiding offi cers who 
represent the legal fraternity, the Professional 
Accountant (SA) and the public interest, to ensures 
fairness.

eDucation coMMittee
The Education Committee (Edcom) comprises six 
members and meets at least four times a year. Edcom 
develops the education and training standards, 
ensuring that these comply with the International 
Education Standards. The committee ensures that 
the Professional Evaluation is of the highest standard 
and the integrity of the two examinations held per 
year. Edcom continuously reviews the SAIPA syllabus, 
training competencies as well as the professional 
standards ensuring that these are up to date at all 
times. 

University accreditations have been carried out 
by the committee and by the end of 2014, four 
universities had been fully accredited with six others 
being provisionally accredited. Full accreditation 
visits will be conducted during 2015. Compliance 
with the Statement of members Obligations, SAQA 
registrations and FASSET quality partnership is key to 
the committee. 

boarD secretarY
The board Secretary assists the board in fulfi lling 
its functions and is empowered by the board to 
perform his duties. The board Secretary also assists the 
Chairman and the Chief Executive in determining 
the annual board plan and board agendas and in 
formulating governance and board-related matters.
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saipa

S Olsen (Chairman)
C Dibete (Deputy Chairman)
S Daniels (Chief Executive)
T Kubheka
R Naidoo
N Ntsinde
A Parker
H Pretorius

A Ramikosi
H Salie
V Sangoni
m Seedat
B Tamba
R Ludwig (Observer)
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S Daniels (Chief Executive)
Y mahomedy (Operations Executive)
F Ngwenya (Technical Executive)
R Thokan-mahomed (Legal manager)
D Gorton (Finance manager)
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auDit risK 
coMMittee
report The Audit and Risk Committee has adopted 

appropriate Terms of Reference based on its Audit 
and Risk Committee Charter. The Charter is updated 
regularly and complies with the principles of good 
governance. The Audit and Risk Committee is 
accountable to the board and has an oversight 
function with regard to:
• fi nancial management;
• risk management and internal audit;
• compliance with laws, regulations and good   
 ethics; and
• reporting practices.

The Audit and Risk Committee has satisfi ed its 
responsibilities for the year in compliance with its 
Terms of Reference.

report on operations of the auDit 
anD risK coMMittee
During the period under review, the following activities 
were undertaken and demonstrate the commitment 
of the Audit and Risk Committee to achieving its 
mandate:
• reviewing quarterly management accounts;
• reviewing the risk analysis, as well as the internal   
 audit coverage plans and budget;
• considering internal audit reports and making   
 recommendations as appropriate; and
• monitoring progress with the internal audit  
 coverage plans as well as management’s 
 follow-up of matters requiring attention throughout.
 
the effectiveness of internal 
control
The Audit and Risk Committee is satisfi ed that:
• the risk management process is in place and that  
 SAIPA’s major risks are properly managed;
• the internal control systems are effective;
• the internal auditors are operating objectively   
 and  independently; and 
• matters requiring management attention have   
 been adequately addressed.
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evaluation of financial 
stateMents
The Audit and Risk Committee has:
• reviewed and discussed the audited Annual   
 Financial Statements to be included in the   
 Annual Report with the external auditor and with   
 management; and
• reviewed the external auditor’s report to  
 management and management’s response   
 thereto.

The Audit and Risk Committee concurs and accepts 
the conclusions of the auditors on the Annual Financial 
Statements and is of the opinion that the audited 
Annual Financial Statements can be accepted and 
read together with the report of the external auditor.

“The Audit and 
Risk Committee 
would therefore 

like to express its 
appreciation to all 

role players...”

conclusion
It should be noted that the Audit and Risk Committee 
relied on the work of management, internal auditors 
and the external auditors in fulfi lling its duties. The Audit 
and Risk Committee would therefore like to express 
its appreciation to all role players for the constructive 
meetings and discussions.
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business
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PROFESSION

members
Associates
Affi liates

Stakeholder 
Engagement, 

Professional Bodies,
Regulatory and 

Compliance bodies

The Professional 
Accountancy 
Organisation 

of Choice

QUALIFICATIONS
DESIGNATIONS

TRAINING
SERVICES

MEMBERS

Represent & Infl uence Profession

Develop, Support & Service Members

SAIPA

Develop Professionals
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Developing 
the 
accounting 
profession What We Do

As one of the largest professional accountancy 
organisations in South Africa, SAIPA plays a key role 
in our economy and for this reason we place a strong 
emphasis on our responsibility to our members as well 
as to the wider community.

Accounting scandals date back to the middle of the 
twentieth century, and the last decade or two have 
seen a disproportionately large number of these 
scandals rock the corporate world. As a result, we 
find ourselves at a place where trust in business is one 
of the most often cited concerns and simultaneously 
one of the most valued commodities. This means that 
credibility is an absolute necessity for the modern 
accountant, and is instrumental to the success of 
both our members, being accountants operating in 
this environment, and even more importantly to the 
business community at large that uses the services 
of accountants and relies on them for accurate 
reporting and business advice.

“...Trust in business is 
one of the most often 
cited concerns and 
simultaneously one 
of the most valued 

commodities.”
For this reason, we see our most important 
contributions to the economy being not only the 
development of our members and the profession, 
but also providing certainty and credibility to the 
wider business community through our professional 
designations. 
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As can be seen in the accompanying illustration of 
our business model, there are three primary areas in 
which our efforts are directed in order to maximise 
our contribution.

1. Members
We are proud of our membership base, which 
includes full members, associates and affi liates. It is 
only by working with our members that we are able 
to make an impact on the economy and positively 
infl uence the business community. To ensure that this 
is sustainable into the future, SAIPA is committed to 
ensuring that we provide opportunities and tools for 
development and growth, and to ensuring that the 
credibility of our members is maintained. 

2. The Profession
The accountancy profession consists of a number of 
key stakeholders, globally and within South Africa. 
SAIPA has an important role to play in infl uencing and 
shaping the development of the profession in many 
ways, and we do so through representation in the 
relevant forums and regular contact with decision 
makers.

3. SAIPA
Our governance structures, systems and employees 
form the backbone of our organisation. These are 
constantly evolving, and by assessing these on a 
regular basis and making changes where necessary, 
we are working to refi ne and improve our ability to 
deliver at a high level to all of our stakeholders. 

CREATING VALUE 
The International Integrated Report Framework 
makes reference to six different types of capitals, with 
reference to the resources and relationships used 
and affected by an organisation.

In terms of creating value, these capitals are not 
necessarily tangible or quantifi able, but they are 
stocks of value that are increased or decreased 
through the activities and outputs of the organisation.

Although organisations are not required to adopt
the categorisations referred to in the framework, we 
have utilised them as they align with how our business 
creates value. 

“...Providing certainty 
and credibility to 

the wider business 
community through 

our professional 
designations.” 

The types of capital included in the framework and 
referenced by us are as follows:

F – Financial Capital
The pool of funds that is available to the organisation 
for use in the production of goods or the provision 
of services. In SAIPA’s context, this consists of 
accumulated funds and reserves, supported by 
annual membership fees charged and other income.

M - Manufactured Capital
manufactured physical objects (as distinct from 
natural physical objects) that are available to an 
organisation for use in the production of goods or 
the provision of services. For SAIPA, this includes the 
educational institutions and public venues which we 
use for the delivery of CPD training events, as well as 
technology devices utilised in delivering our services.

H – Human Capital
People’s competencies, capabilities and experience, 
and their motivations to innovate. In our context, this 
is primarily our members, our staff and committee
members, as well as volunteers who assist in providing 
our services or reaching our stakeholders.
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I – Intellectual Capital
Organisational, knowledge-based intangibles. 
At SAIPA, we consider this to represent SAIPA’s 
competency framework, our designations, various 
technical resources and CPD material, trademarks, 
and our professional exam.

S – Social and Relationship Capital
The institutions and the relationships within and 
between communities, groups of stakeholders and 
other networks, and the ability to share information 
to enhance individual and collective well-being. At 
SAIPA, these include professional bodies, regulators, 
members, trainees, universities and schools, suppliers 
and consultants, as well as learnerships and 
mentoring.

n – natural capital
All renewable and non-renewable environmental 
resources and processes that provide goods or 
services that support the past, current or future 
prosperity of an organisation. We are working towards 
minimising our environmental footprint through better 
use of technology.

What We aspire to
SAIPA’s constitution forms the foundation of everything 
we do. It guides our decisions and direction.

To be a meaningful contributor in our industry, SAIPA 
has identified the following critical success factors 
that speak to those constitutional objectives and 
they are how we measure our success.

“...Critical success 
factors also tie 

in directly to the 
concept of the types 
of capital referenced 
by the International 

Integrated Reporting 
Framework”

These critical success factors also tie in directly to the 
concept of the types of capital referenced by the 
International Integrated Reporting Framework and 
thereby further illustrate how, in furthering our efforts 
relating to these critical success factors, we can 
create value in the process.

The critical success factors and some of the ways in 
which they create value within the different types of 
capital are as follows:
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Capital affected

F M H I S N

1. Secure the growth and transformation of SAIPA

Growth in total membership generates reach, infl uence and revenue for SAIPA ✔ ✔ ✔
maintaining our high standards and the credibility of our designations helps 
ensure that SAIPA remains a desirable Institute to be associated with, thereby 
enhancing the growth of the Institute and cementing the high standards that 
we stand for

✔ ✔

Enhanced demographic transformation contributes to the development of the 
profession and improves opportunities for existing accountants as well as for 
future accountants

✔ ✔

2. Strengthen SAIPA’s relationships with national and international stakeholders
Positioning SAIPA correctly in the relevant stakeholder forums elevates SAIPA’s 
status, as well as the status of our members, particularly in the eyes of their 
clients and employers

✔ ✔ ✔

Keeping abreast of emerging trends allows SAIPA to effectively develop our 
own capabilities as well as those of our members ✔ ✔ ✔
In building a strong platform, SAIPA can be a loud voice for the interests of our 
stakeholders and add value to the development of the profession according to 
the needs of the wider community

✔

3. Enhance the capacity and professionalism of members and staff
Providing relevant and appropriate continuous professional development 
content is critical to maintaining SAIPA’s rigorous standards, thereby ensuring 
the credibility of SAIPA and its members

✔ ✔

Increasing member capacity in terms of knowledge regarding new or 
alternative services that can be provided, is benefi cial to members’ own 
income generating ability 

✔ ✔

by suitably developing our staff, we are better placed to service our 
stakeholders ✔ ✔ ✔

4. Ensure compliance and sustainability of our members and the Institute

Establishing and maintaining suitable governance structures, systems 
and processes are critical to ensuring the sustainability of SAIPA, thereby 
contributing to the credibility of our designations in the marketplace

✔ ✔

Regularly assessing new opportunities and pursuing the appropriate ones is 
benefi cial to SAIPA and our members as we grow our reach and expertise ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔
Compliance and adherence to policies and quality standards, along with 
holding our members to the relevant standards as well, helps build and 
maintain both SAIPA’s and our members’ credibility

✔ ✔ ✔
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Stakeholder Why we engage What matters to the 
stakeholder How we connect

Members

• Our members are 
integral to every 
aspect of our business. 
Whatever we do we 
need to take into 
account their needs. 

• All of our products and 
services should be able 
to effectively assist 
members in maintaining 
their professionalism 
and contribute to their 
success.

• Service levels
• Technical assistance 

and information
• Product information
• Value of the 

designations
• Practice management 

information

• member forums and 
CPD training forums

• Newsletters and 
publications

• Website
• member surveys

Accredited Training 
centres (atcs)

• ATCs service the wider 
public and also provide 
a training ground for 
our trainees where 
key knowledge and 
skills are transferred 
and the Professional 
Accountants (SA) of the 
future are developed.

• Trainee competency
• Assessment of trainees
• Trainee logbook

• Planned ATC visits
• Quality assessments

trainees

• Trainees are our 
future members 
and supporting 
them through the 
qualifi cation process 
is critical to their 
development.

• mentorship and training
• Career opportunities
• Practice management 

information

• CPD training forums
• Newsletters and 

publications
• Website
• ATCs

students and learners

• We look to attract 
learners at schools and 
students in universities 
to the accounting 
profession as well as 
to encourage them to 
pursue a future as a 
SAIPA member.

• Growth and 
development

• Career opportunities
• Potential remuneration

• SAIPA’s annual National 
Accounting Olympiad

• University visits and 
presence

• Publications

universities

• Accredited universities 
provide the basis of our 
theoretical programme 
and are critical to 
maintaining our 
standards.

• Competency 
framework

• Accreditation 
requirements

• Visits and meetings

our 
staKeholDers
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Stakeholder Why we engage What matters to the 
stakeholder How we connect

Employees

• Our employees are 
the face of SAIPA and 
it is through them that 
other stakeholder 
relationships are formed 
and maintained. 

• Remuneration
• Training and 

development

• Day-to-day interaction
• Regular staff meetings
• Education sessions
• Employee surveys

Potential employees

• In order to be an 
employer of choice 
and attract talented 
individuals, we need 
to ensure the potential 
employees view SAIPA 
in a desirable light.

• Growth and 
development

• Career opportunities
• Potential remuneration

• media
• Website
• Publications

Suppliers
• Delivery of key 

resources integral to the 
successful functioning 
of SAIPA

• building strong 
relationships

• Fair reward

• Day-to-day interactions
• Ad hoc meetings and 

communication

Professional 
accountancy bodies

• Shaping the 
development of 
the profession 
and contributing 
to its growth and 
transformation

• Compliance with 
standards and 
requirements

• Representation of 
members and the 
profession

• Providing input on key 
issues experienced by 
the profession

• Submissions on key 
issues

• Representation on 
boards and committees 
of the various bodies

• meetings and visits

Government • Playing a role in the 
development of South 
Africa and its economy

• maintaining standards 
of the profession

• Strong ethics
• Development of skills in 

the public sector

• Ad hoc meetings and 
communication

Regulators

• maintaining SAIPA’s 
accreditations and 
credibility through 
compliance with 
standards and 
regulations

• Compliance with 
standards and 
regulations

• Committee structures
• Telephonic and written 

communications
• Face-to-face meetings

The media and the 
wider community

• maximise the respect 
and reverence for the 
accounting profession 
and Professional 
Accountants (SA)

• Credibility of SAIPA 
members and 
designations

• Transformation 
within SAIPA and the 
profession

• Website
• Press releases
• Publications
• Articles
• Interviews
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Note: SA %’s refer to national population distribution

international  2%
United Kingdom
Australia
Namibia
Russia
Canada
Other

Western region
SAIPA  18%
SA   11%

central region
SAIPA  9%
SA   7%
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OUROUR

Southern region
SAIPA  6%
SA   13%

Eastern region
SAIPA  11%
SA   20%

Northern region
SAIPA  54%
SA   49%
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risK

SAIPA has a Risk management Committee charged 
with monitoring and evaluating risk and reporting 
accordingly to the Audit Risk Committee.

The following describes the key elements of the 
risk management process, namely risk planning, 
identifi cation, analysis, response, and monitoring. 
Risk planning and risk identifi cation for both internal 
and external risks are conducted at management 
level. We primarily utilise a risk register which includes 
risk mitigation strategies for identifi ed risks. Risk 
identifi cation takes place at various levels of SAIPA to 
ensure that common risk trends are identifi ed and risk 
management can successfully be enabled. 

To determine which risks pose the highest threat to 
the viability of SAIPA, we classify them on a scale 
based on the likelihood that a risk will occur within 
the assessment horizon as well as the impact the risk 
would have on SAIPA’s business objectives if it were 
realised. The scale varies from 1, where the likelihood 
of occurrence is remote, to 10, where the likelihood 
is certain.

We defi ne a remote risk as one that will occur only 
under exceptional circumstances and a near certain 
risk as one that can be expected to occur within the 
specifi ed time horizon, being our identifi ed strategic 
planning period.

We also evaluate the impact level on a scale ranging 
from insignifi cant, where the impact of an adverse 
event is minimal, to critical, where major fi nancial, 
operational or reputational loss can occur.

based on the likelihood that a risk will occur as well as 
the impact the risk would have on SAIPA’s reputation, 
business, fi nancial position, profi t, and cash fl ow leads 
us to classify the risks as “high,” “medium,” or “low.”

management are responsible for continuously 
monitoring the risks and the effectiveness of mitigation 
strategies. 

All identifi ed and relevant risks are evaluated at the 
Risk management Committee in accordance with 
our risk management policy, and thereafter reported 
to the Audit Risk Committee as required. The board 
is informed quarterly about individual risks based on 
clearly defi ned reporting criteria. 
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issues, 
risKs anD
opportunities

reputation anD creDibilitY
Critical Success Factor – Enhance the capacity and 
professionalism of members

Related risks
• Not providing suitable opportunities to members   
 for their own professional development
• Undesirable staff turnover

related opportunities
• Development of new products and services for   
 members
• being an employer of choice

coMpliance
Critical Success Factor – Ensure compliance and 
sustainability of our members and the Institute

Related risks
• Reduction in standards and quality
• Reduction in member base due to enforcement  
 of quality standards and CPD compliance
• Litigation relating to non-compliance

related opportunities
• Development of further relevant CPD offerings
• Improved quality of membership base through 
 increased compliance

groWth in MeMbership base anD 
reach
Critical Success Factor  –  Secure the growth and 
transformation of SAIPA

Related risks
• Not attracting enough new members to join
• Poor retention of existing members
• Poor or inadequate service to members
• Inadequate transformation in terms of 
 demographics

related opportunities
• Improving the communication of benefi ts relating 
 to our designations
• Streamlining the number of different types of 
 membership
• Developing exceptional service to members
• Increasing the scope and reach of the National 
 Accounting Olympiad
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IMPORTANCE OF    
STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS
Critical Success Factor – Strengthen SAIPA’s 
relationships with national and international 
stakeholders

Related risks
• Deterioration in quality of stakeholder relationships
• Not keeping up with emerging trends or changes 
 in the profession

Related opportunities
• Strengthen relationships with key stakeholders that 
 can contribute to the development of the 
 profession as well as our members
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THE 21ST CENTURY 
ACCOUNTANT
Like many other occupations, the role of the accountant is constantly evolving. This is not by choice, 
but is instead driven by the demands that are coming from the business sector. The ways in which 
companies do business is constantly changing, as are their products, their services and their 
requirements.

In terms of developing our members, it is imperative to look at how the role and requirements of a 
professional accountant are changing. With that in mind, SAIPA can then put in place useful training 
and tools to assist our members in facing this different future.

The emphasis of the 21st century Professional Accountant (SA) is to add value to the client and 
organisation rather than being the recorder or assessor of business transactions and activities.

Value is added by assisting, advising and guiding management with the analysis of information to 
improve the client’s or organisation’s performance and sustainability.

We look forward to walking this path with our members and 
growing together.
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PROFESSIONAL 
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revenue anD 
MeMbership 
groWth
SAIPA’s success is inherently linked to the growth in our number of members as well as the development 
of our members.

2014 saw further growth in our membership numbers across the board, with full members, accounting 
technicians and trainees all increasing in number.

Our trainee pipeline is linked to our reach of students and learners, hence our National Accounting 
Olympiad event and our bursary fund, from which bursaries were distributed for the fi rst time in 2014.

Although not a large membership group, members with the Accounting Technician designation play a 
vital role in helping us reach a broader market as well as providing a stepping stone for those who wish 
to become a Professional Accountant (SA) in the long term.

Professional Accountants (SA) make up by far the majority of our membership base and it is these 
professionals in practice and working in other organisations who continue to make a key contribution to 
the economy and wider community.
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revenue anD 
MeMbership 
groWth
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With a continuing shortage of suitably qualifi ed 
accountants in South Africa, SAIPA is committed to 
doing all we can to encourage school-leavers to 
consider professional accountancy as a career path.

SAIPA has been co-ordinating the annual National 
Accounting Olympiad (NAO) for secondary 
schools since 2002 – an initiative which continues to 
encourage learners from all over the country to take 
part in a battle of the minds, as they compete for 
top prizes, including bursaries. Participants receive 
complementary accountancy study guides which 
provide them with valuable career and bursary 
information.

Following an internal cycle examination, where 
teachers identify their top fi ve accounting pupils, 
who are eligible to participate, the NAO competition 
consists of two rounds, and each round takes the 
form of a two hour examination. The fi rst examination 
determines the regional winners, where the top 
three pupils in each region progress to the second 
and fi nal round of the competition. This fi nal round 
determines the three national winners, in both 

streams. Winners are announced at a formal National 
Gala Awards Evening, where the young achievers 
are acknowledged and applauded by SAIPA and 
our partners.

In 2014, 2,819 learners wrote the fi rst round, up 
from 2,536 in 2013. These learners represented 370 
different schools throughout South Africa.Of all those 
who wrote in 2014, 930 proceeded to the second 
round by obtaining over 50%. This success rate of 
33% was consistent with 2013, while being a marked 
improvement from the years before that.

Going forward we hope to see an increasing number 
of schools and learners entering the competition, as 
well as ever-increasing success rates.

by creating and maintaining this National Accounting 
Olympiad platform, SAIPA is looking to the future of 
the profession in order to attract these young learners 
with vast potential into the fi eld of accounting 
and exposing them to the benefi ts of becoming 
professional accountants.
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financial results
As a non-profi t organisation, generating increasing returns is not a priority for SAIPA. However, 
maintaining a sound fi nancial position is absolutely critical and it is for that reason that our budget is 
carefully managed in line with our strategic objectives, in order to reduce the risk of large defi cits.

2014 marks the third consecutive year where SAIPA has reported a surplus. This in turn contributes to 
the strength of the Institute’s balance sheet and our sustainability in the long run. This has become 
increasingly important as tough economic conditions have endured throughout the global 
economy. 

Like most other professional bodies, we face continuing pressures to charge less to our members and 
spend more on resources to provide services. Taking into account our strategic objectives, we do 
our utmost to ensure that we balance all these competing pressures and at the end of the day, to 
maintain a strong Institute that members can be proud of.
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professional 
evaluation
SAIPA’s Professional Evaluation (PE) exam forms a critical part of our qualifi cation process as well as 
maintaining our standards and credibility.

Candidates writing the PE comprise SAIPA’s own trainees as well as external candidates who meet 
the requirements to take the examination. A preparation course is offered and is generally well-
attended.

Although the number of candidates writing our exams increased only marginally in 2014, this year 
saw an increase in the pass rate for candidates from 66% in the 2013 to 72% overall.

The improvement in both candidate numbers and pass rate is welcome. Going forward, we are 
committed to ensuring that our quality and standards are maintained through this important aspect 
of the qualifi cation process.
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MeMber 
DevelopMent
Continuous Professional Development (CPD) remains a key requirement for continued 
professionalism as a Professional Accountant (SA) and for members to remain in good standing. 

The Institute endeavors to bring topics that will benefit members and enhance their service to clients. 

In 2012, we introduced an annual CPD subscription. The initiative was welcomed by many members 
who took advantage of the opportunity to attend an unlimited number of workshops through the 
annual CPD subscription scheme, with the number of subscribers almost doubling from 2012 to 2014. 
This has assisted an increasing number of our members to remain CPD compliant.

Looking ahead, we are committed to maintaining an offering of relevant topics and finding suitable 
new ways for members to access the content.
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inDeX
The reports and statements set out below comprise the annual fi nancial statements presented to the members:
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board members' Responsibilities and Approval 68
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board members' Report 70 - 71
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 73

Statement of Changes in Equity 74

Statement of Cash Flows 75

Accounting Policies 76 - 81

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 82 - 95

The following supplementary information does not form part of the annual fi nancial statements and is unaudited:
Detailed Income Statement       96 - 97                              
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boarD MeMbers’ 
responsibilities anD 
approval

south african institute of professional accountants
(Registration number 069 956 NPO)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014

The board is required to maintain adequate accounting records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the annual fi nancial 
statements and related fi nancial information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the annual fi nancial statements 
fairly present the state of affairs of the Institute as at the end of the fi nancial year and the results of its operations and cash fl ows for the 
period then ended, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards. The external auditors are engaged to express an 
independent opinion on the annual fi nancial statements.

The annual fi nancial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and are based on 
appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The board acknowledges that it is ultimately responsible for the system of internal fi nancial control established by the Institute and places 
considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the board to meet these responsibilities, the board 
sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper 
delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defi ned framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties 
to ensure an acceptable level of risk. 

These controls are monitored throughout the Institute and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards to ensure 
the Institute’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management 
in the Institute is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the Institute. While operating risk 
cannot be fully eliminated, the board endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical 
behaviour is applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The board is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal control provides 
reasonable assurance that the fi nancial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual fi nancial statements. However, any 
system of internal fi nancial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The board has reviewed the Institute’s cash fl ow forecast and, in light of this review and the current fi nancial position, it is satisfi ed that the 
Institute has or had access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the Institute’s annual fi nancial statements. 

The annual fi nancial statements have been examined by the company’s external auditors and their report is presented on page 69.

The annual fi nancial statements set out on pages 70 to 97, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by 
the board on 10 march 2015 and were signed on their behalf by:

s olsen (chariman) S Daniels (Chief Executive)
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inDepenDent 
auDitors’ report
to the MeMbers of the south african institute of professional accountants
We have audited the annual fi nancial statements of the South African Institute of Professional Accountants, as set out on pages 72 
to 95, which comprise the statement of fi nancial position as at 31 December 2014, and the statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash fl ows for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of 
signifi cant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

boarD’s responsibilitY for the annual financial stateMents
The Institute’s board is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these annual fi nancial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards, and the requirements of the Institute’s Constitution, and for such internal control as the 
board determines is necessary to enable the preparation of annual fi nancial statements that are free from material misstatements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

auDitors’ responsibilitY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these annual fi nancial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the annual fi nancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the annual fi nancial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the annual fi nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the annual fi nancial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the annual fi nancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

opinion
In our opinion, the annual fi nancial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the fi nancial position of the South African 
Institute of Professional Accountants as at 31 December 2014, and its fi nancial performance and its cash fl ows for the year then 
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and the requirements of the Institute’s Constitution.

suppleMentarY inforMation
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the fact that supplementary information set out on pages 96 - 97 does not 
form part of the annual fi nancial statements and is presented as additional information. We have not audited this information and 
accordingly do not express an opinion thereon.

other reports
As part of our audit of the annual fi nancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014, we have read the board members’ 
Report for the purpose of identifying whether there are material inconsistencies between this report and the audited annual fi nancial 
statements. This report is the responsibility of the respective preparers. based on reading this report we have not identifi ed material 
inconsistencies between this report and the audited annual fi nancial statements. However, we have not audited this report and 
accordingly do not express an opinion thereon.

nexia sab&t
registered auditors
Per: A Darmalingam
Date: 10 March 2015
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boarD MeMbers’ report

south african institute of professional accountants
(Registration number 069 956 NPO)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014

name Designation changes
S Olsen Chairman

C Dibete Deputy Chairman

S Daniels Chief Executive

T Kubheka

R Naidoo

N Ntsinde

A Parker

H Pretorius

A Ramikosi Appointed 10 march 2014

H Salie

V Sangoni

m Seedat

B Tamba

R Ludwig Observer

The board has pleasure in submitting their report for the year ended 31 December 2014.

1.  revieW of activities
 Main business and operations
 The Institute is a qualifi cation and membership body for professional individuals engaged in accountancy and related services.  
 The fi nancial position, operating results and cash fl ows of the Institute are set out in the attached annual fi nancial statements
 and do not in our opinion require any further comment.

2.  going concern
 The annual fi nancial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This 
 basis presumes that funds will be available to fi nance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of 
 liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

3.  events after the reporting perioD
 The board is not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the fi nancial year that has a material impact on 
 the annual fi nancial statements.

4.  Directors
 The board members of the Institute in offi ce during the year and at the date of this report are as follows:
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boarD MeMbers’ report
5. secretarY
 The Institute’s board Secretary is m Nkumanda.

6. coMMittees

committee name abbreviation used in this 
document

Appeals Committee                                                    AC

Audit Risk Committee ARC

Disciplinary Committee                                               DC

Executive Committee                                                  Exco

Education Committee                                                 Edcom

Human Resources Committee                                    HRC

Investigations Committee                                           IC

Nominations Committee                                             NOmCOm

Regional Associations and District 
Associations Committee RADAC

Social and Ethics Committee                                      SEC 

Technical Committee                                                  Techcom
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014

stateMent of financial 
position as at 31 Dec 2014

note(s) 2014 
r

2013
r

assets
non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 8,245,930 8,761,103

IIntangible assets 4 415,977 219,074

Investments 5 254,870 193,847

8,916,777 9,174,024
current assets
Accounts receivable 7 3,701,398 2,593,192

Cash and cash equivalents 8 23,427,063 18,890,489

27,128,461 21,483,681
total assets 36,045,238 30,657,705

eQuitY anD liabilities
Equity
Designated funds and reserves 7,984,940 7,159,379
Accumulated funds 6,229,303 6,369,171

14,214,243 13,528,550

liabilities
non-current liabilities
Finance lease obligation 13 312,804 563,195

current liabilities
Finance lease obligation 13 250,391 321,329

Accounts payable 14 21,267,800 16,244,631

21,518,191 16,565,960
total liabilities 21,830,995 17,129,155
Total Equity and Liabilities 36,045,238 30,657,705
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south african institute of professional accountants
(Registration number 069 956 NPO)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014

stateMent of 
coMprehensive incoMe

note(s) 2014 
r

2013
r

Revenue 16 37,868,413 32,654,429

Other income 17 8,814,130 6,589,163

Operating expenses (46,949,465) (39,039,914)

operating (loss)/surplus 18 (266,922) 203,678
Investment revenue 19 960,886 766,464

Finance costs 20 (69,295) (96,257)

Surplus for the year 624,669 873,885

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:
Gains on revaluation of investments 61,024 30,839

Other comprehensive income for the year 61,024 30,839
Total comprehensive income for the year 685,693 904,724
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stateMent of changes 
in eQuitY

building 
reserve

r

Bursary 
fund

r

revaluation
reserve

r

Development
fund

r

total 
reserves

r

Accumulated
funds

r

total
Equity

r

Balance at 01 January 2013 - 400,000 132,298 5,617,492 6,149,790 6,474,036 12,623,826

Surplus for the year - - - - - 873,885 873,885

Other comprehensive income - - 30,839 - 30,839 - 30,839

Total comprehensive income for the year - - 30,839 - 30,839 873,885 904,724
Transfer between reserves 240,000 50,000 - 688,750 978,750 (978,750) -

total transfers 240,000 50,000 - 688,750 978,750 (978,750) -
Balance at 01 January 2014 240,000 450,000 163,137 6,306,242 7,159,379 6,369,171 13,528,550
Surplus for the year - - - - - 624,669 624,669

Other comprehensive income - - 61,024 - 61,024 - 61,024

total comprehensive income for the year - - 61,024 - 61,024 624,669 685,693
Transfer between reserves 240,000 (20,000) - 544,537 764,537 (764,537) -

total transfers 240,000 (20,000) - 544,537 764,537 (764,537) -
Balance at 31 December 2014 480,000 430,000 224,161 6,850,779 7,984,940 6,229,303 14,214,243
Note(s) 9 10 11 12
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stateMent of cash floWs
note(s) 2014 

r
2013

r

cash floWs froM operating activities
Cash receipts from members 44,449,006 31,874,012

Cash paid to suppliers and employees (39,896,563) (23,714,751)

Cash generated from operations 23 4,552,443 8,159,261

Interest income 960,886 766,464

Net cash from operating activities 5,513,329 8,925,725

cash floWs froM investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 (178,185) (431,530)

Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 2,080 -

Purchase of other intangible assets 4 (410,026) (166,272)

Net cash in investing activities (586,131) (597,802)

cash floWs froM financing activities
Finance lease payments (390,624) (516,566)

Total cash movement for the year 4,536,574 7,811,357
Cash at the beginning of the year 18,890,489 11,079,132

Total cash at end of the year 8 23,427,063 18,890,489
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accounting policies
1.   presentation of annual financial stateMents
The annual fi nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. The annual 
fi nancial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the Statement of Cash Flows which has been presented 
on a cash basis, and Available for Sale investments which has been prepared on a fair value basis, and incorporate the principal 
accounting policies set out below. They are presented in South African Rands.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1  accounts receivable anD cash anD cash eQuivalents
In preparing the annual fi nancial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts 
represented in the annual fi nancial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the application of judgement is 
inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material to the annual 
fi nancial statements. Signifi cant judgements include:

Its accounts receivable cash and cash equivalents
The Institute assesses its accounts receivable cash and cash equivalents for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining 
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or defi cit, the Institute makes judgements as to whether there is observable 
data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash fl ows from a fi nancial asset.

Available-for-sale fi nancial assets
The Institute follows the guidance of IAS 39 to determine when an available-for-sale fi nancial asset is impaired. This determination requires 
signifi cant judgment. In making this judgment, the Institute evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair 
value of an investment is less than its cost.

fair value estimation
The fair value of fi nancial instruments traded in active markets (such as trading and available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted 
market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for fi nancial assets held by the Institute is the current bid 
price.

The carrying value less impairment provision of accounts receivable and accounts payable are assumed to approximate their fair 
values. The fair value of fi nancial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash fl ows at the 
current market interest rate that is available to the Institute for similar fi nancial instruments.

impairment testing
The Institute reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying amount 
may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifi able cash fl ows are largely independent of cash fl ows of 
other assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash 
fl ows for each group of assets. Expected future cash fl ows used to determine the value in use of tangible assets are inherently uncertain 
and could materially change over time.

Residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment are based on management estimates.

1.2  propertY, plant anD eQuipMent
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
• It is probable that future economic benefi ts associated with the item will fl ow to the Institute; and
•    the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.
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Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred subsequently 
to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and 
equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated residual value.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. 

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. 

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or defi cit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant or equipment is included in surplus or defi cit when the 
item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

1.3  intangible assets
An intangible asset is recognised when:
•   It is probable that the expected future economic benefi ts that are attributable to the asset will fl ow to the entity; and
•  the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefi nite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the 
period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash infl ows. Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets, but they 
are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets 
amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed every period-end.

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a fi nite useful life after it was classifi ed as indefi nite is an indicator that the asset may 
be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its useful life.

item average useful life
Land  Indefi nite

buildings     50 years

Furniture and fi xtures 10 - 12 years

motor vehicles   5 years

Offi ce equipment                                                                                     5 years

IT Equipment 3 years

Finance lease assets - offi ce equipment Lease term
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Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:

1.4  financial instruMents
Classifi cation
The Institute classifi es fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities into the following categories:
• Loans and receivables
• Available-for-sale fi nancial assets
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Classifi cation depends on the purpose for which the fi nancial instruments were obtained / incurred and takes place at initial recognition. 
Classifi cation is re-assessed on an annual basis.

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are recognised initially when the Institute becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

The Institute classifi es fi nancial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a fi nancial asset, a fi nancial liability or an 
equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value.

For fi nancial instruments which are not at fair value through surplus or defi cit, transaction costs are included in the initial measurement 
of the instrument.

subsequent measurement
Accounts receivable, cash and cash equivalents are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less 
accumulated impairment losses.

Available-for-sale fi nancial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are 
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity until the asset is disposed of or determined to be impaired. 
Interest on available-for-sale fi nancial assets calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in surplus or defi cit as part of 
other income. Dividends received on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in surplus or defi cit as part of other income 
when the Institute’s right to receive payment is established.

Accounts payable and fi nance lease obligations at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective 
interest method.

Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash fl ows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and 
the Institute has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Impairment of fi nancial assets
At each reporting date the Institute assesses all fi nancial assets to determine whether there is objective evidence that a fi nancial asset 
or group of fi nancial assets has been impaired.

accounting policies cont.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:

1.4  financial instruMents
The Institute classifi es fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities into the following categories:
• Loans and receivables
• Available-for-sale fi nancial assets
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Classifi cation depends on the purpose for which the fi nancial instruments were obtained / incurred and takes place at initial recognition. 
Classifi cation is re-assessed on an annual basis.

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are recognised initially when the Institute becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

The Institute classifi es fi nancial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a fi nancial asset, a fi nancial liability or an 
equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value.

For fi nancial instruments which are not at fair value through surplus or defi cit, transaction costs are included in the initial measurement 

subsequent measurement
Accounts receivable, cash and cash equivalents are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less 
accumulated impairment losses.

Available-for-sale fi nancial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are 
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity until the asset is disposed of or determined to be impaired. 
Interest on available-for-sale fi nancial assets calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in surplus or defi cit as part of 
other income. Dividends received on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in surplus or defi cit as part of other income 
when the Institute’s right to receive payment is established.

Accounts payable and fi nance lease obligations at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective 

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash fl ows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and 
the Institute has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Impairment of fi nancial assets
At each reporting date the Institute assesses all fi nancial assets to determine whether there is objective evidence that a fi nancial asset 
or group of fi nancial assets has been impaired.

item useful life
Computer software 2 years

Website   2 years
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For amounts due to the Institute, signifi cant fi nancial diffi culties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy and 
default of payments are all considered indicators of impairment.

Impairment losses and reversals of impairment losses are recognised in surplus or defi cit.

Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the fi nancial asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the fi nancial asset at the date that 
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not been recognised. 

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in surplus or defi cit when 
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash fl ows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial 
recognition.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the defi cit is recognised 
in surplus or defi cit within operating expenses. When a debtor is uncollectable, it is written off against the provision for doubtful debts. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses in surplus or defi cit.

Accounts payable
Accounts payable are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate 
method.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are 
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignifi cant risk of changes in value. These are initially recorded at 
fair value and subsequently at amortised cost.

1.5  leases
A lease is classifi ed as a fi nance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is classifi ed as an 
operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

Finance leases – lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of fi nancial position at amounts equal to the fair value of the 
leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the 
statement of fi nancial position as a fi nance lease obligation. 

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease. 

The lease payments are apportioned between the fi nance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The fi nance charge 
is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate on the remaining balance of the liability.

operating leases – lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the amounts 
recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset. This liability is not discounted.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.
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1.6  iMpairMent of assets
The Institute assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such 
indication exists, the Institute estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the 
recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, 
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable 
amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in surplus or 
defi cit.

The Institute assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for assets 
may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.

The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in 
surplus or defi cit.

1.7  eMploYee benefits
Short-term employee benefi ts
The cost of short-term employee benefi ts, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation leave 
and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefi ts such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered 
and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their 
entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

Defi ned contribution plans
Payments to the defi ned contribution retirement benefi t plan in respect of services in a particular period are charged as an expense in 
that period.

1.8  provisions anD contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:
• The Institute has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
• It is probable that an outfl ow of resources embodying economic benefi ts will be required to settle the obligation; and
• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation. Where some or all 
of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement shall be recognised 
when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall 
be treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 26. 
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1.9  revenue
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefi ts will fl ow to the Institute and the revenue can be reliably 
measured. When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised 
only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received 
or receivable and represents the amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of trade 
discounts and volume rebates, and value added tax.

Approved training centres
Approved training centre fee revenue arises from the invoicing for accreditation as well as annual fees. Revenue is recognised in the 
year to which the fee relates.

Entrance and administration fees
Entrance and administration fees arise during and upon completion of the application process. The fees are invoiced and the revenue 
is recognised at the appropriate time during the processing of the application.

Membership fees and other annual fees
membership fee revenue arises from the annual billing of members for annual membership. Revenue is recognised in the year to which 
the annual membership fee relates. membership fees received prior to the year to which they relate are recorded as income received 
in advance and recognised in the year that the membership fee relates to.

professional evaluation fees
Professional evaluation fees arise during the professional evaluation application process. The fees are invoiced and the revenue is 
recognised at the appropriate time during the processing of the application.

Technical and other income
Revenue from technical and other income is recognised when the Institute has invoiced the buyer and has provided the applicable 
services or transferred the signifi cant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods to the buyer.

Investment income
Interest is recognised, in surplus or defi cit, using the effective interest rate method. Dividends are recognised, in surplus or defi cit, when 
the Institute’s right to receive payment has been established.

1.10 borroWing costs
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1.11 stateMent of cash floWs
The Statement of Cash Flows is prepared using the Direct method. 
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notes to the annual 
financial stateMents
2.     neW stanDarDs anD interpretations

2.1   stanDarDs anD interpretations effective anD aDopteD in the current Year
In the current year, the Institute has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current fi nancial year 
and that are relevant to its operations:

2.2   stanDarDs anD interpretations not Yet effective
The Institute has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory 
for the Institute’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2015 or later periods:

The impact of each of these changes is currently being investigated by management and will be applied from the effective date.

Standard / Interpretation:                                                                          Effective date: Years beginning on or after

IAS 36 - Impairment of assets: Amendments                            01 January 2014

Standard/ Interpretation:                                                                          Effective date: Years beginning on or after

IFRS 13 - Fair value measurement: Annual improvements 2010-2012 and 2011-2013 01 July 2014

IAS 16 -  Property, plant and equipment: Annual improvements 2010-2012 01 July 2014

IAS 24  - Related party disclosures: Annual improvements 2010-2012 01 July 2014

IAS 38  - Intangible assets: Annual improvements 2010-2012 01 July 2014

IAS 40 - Investment property: Annual improvements 2011-2013 01 July 2014

IAS 1 - Presentation of fi nancial statements: Amendments 01 January 2016

IAS 16  -  Property, plant and equipment: Amendments 01 January 2016

IAS 38 - Intangible assets: Amendments 01 January 2016

IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers: New standard for revenue 
  recognition and disclosure

01 January 2017

IFRS 9 - Financial instruments 01 January 2018
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Standard/ Interpretation:                                                                          Effective date: Years beginning on or after

IFRS 13 - Fair value measurement: Annual improvements 2010-2012 and 2011-2013 01 July 2014

IAS 16 -  Property, plant and equipment: Annual improvements 2010-2012 01 July 2014

IAS 24  - Related party disclosures: Annual improvements 2010-2012 01 July 2014

IAS 38  - Intangible assets: Annual improvements 2010-2012 01 July 2014

IAS 40 - Investment property: Annual improvements 2011-2013 01 July 2014

IAS 1 - Presentation of fi nancial statements: Amendments 01 January 2016

IAS 16  -  Property, plant and equipment: Amendments 01 January 2016

IAS 38 - Intangible assets: Amendments 01 January 2016

IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers: New standard for revenue 
  recognition and disclosure

01 January 2017

IFRS 9 - Financial instruments 01 January 2018

3.   propertY, plant anD eQuipMent 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2014 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2013

2014 2013

cost Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying value cost Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
value 

Land 775,000 - 775,000 775,000 - 775,000

buildings 7,078,666 (808,583) 6,270,083 7,071,266 (808,583) 6,262,683

Furniture and fi xtures 583,842 (267,183) 316,659 568,939 (209,951) 358,988

motor vehicles 131,491 (124,917) 6,574 131,491 (98,618) 32,873

Offi ce equipment 887,537 (734,132) 153,405 862,905 (545,251) 317,654

IT equipment 973,333 (742,416) 230,917 1,003,047 (699,482) 303,565

Finance lease assets - offi ce equipment 1,183,900 (690,608) 493,292 1,183,900 (473,560) 710,340

total 11,613,769 (3,367,839) 8,245,930 11,596,548 (2,835,445) 8,761,103

Opening balance additions Disposals Depreciation total

Land 775,000 - - - 775,000

buildings 6,262,683 7,400 - - 6,270,083

Furniture and fi xtures 358,988 14,903 - (57,232) 316,659

motor vehicles 32,873 - - (26,299) 6,574

Offi ce equipment 317,654 24,632 - (188,881) 153,405

IT equipment 303,565 131,250 (12,658) (191,240) 230,917

Finance lease assets - offi ce equipment 710,340 - - (217,048) 493,292

total 8,761,103 178,185 (12,658) (680,700) 8,245,930

Opening balance additions Disposals Depreciation total

Land 775,000 - - - 775,000

buildings 6,262,683 - - - 6,262,683

Furniture and fi xtures 292,991 115,994 - (49,997) 358,988

motor vehicles 59,171 - - (26,298) 32,873

Offi ce equipment 379,472 93,277 - (155,095) 317,654

IT equipment 238,593 222,259 (8,021) (149,266) 303,565

Finance lease assets - offi ce equipment 947,120 - - (236,780) 710,340

total 8,955,030 431,530 (8,021) (617,436) 8,761,103
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Pledged as security 
Carrying value of assets pledged as security 

Certain offi ce equipment is pledged as security for fi nance lease obligations. Refer to note 13.  

Details of properties

Erf 1339, Vorna Valley Extension 21, Gauteng

An independent valuation of the property as at 22 October 2014 valued the property at R7,800,000.

4.     intangible assets

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2014

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2013

2014 
r

2013
r

Offi ce equipment 493,292 710,340

2014 2013

cost Accumulated 
amortisation

Carrying value cost Accumulated 
amortisation

Carrying 
value 

Computer software 938,168 (522,191) 415,977 581,296 (375,724) 205,572

Website 80,689 (80,689) - 80,689 (67,187) 13,502

total 1,018,857 (602,880) 415,977 661,985 (442,911) 219,074

2014 
r

2013
r

Purchase price: January 2007 7,775,000 7,775,000

Additions and capitalised expenditure 78,666 71,266

buildings accumulated depreciation (808,583) (808,583)

total 7,045,083 7,037,683

Opening balance additions amortisation total
Computer software 291,273 166,272 (251,973) 205,572

Website 53,846 - (40,344) 13,502

total 345,119 166,272 (292,317) 219,074

Opening balance additions amortisation total
Computer software 205,572 410,026 (199,621) 415,977

Website 13,502 - (13,502) -

total 219,074 410,026 (213,123) 415,977

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEmENTS |  |  NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEmENTS84



AbOUT SAIPA | 02AbOUT SAIPA | 02

notes to the annual 
financial stateMents cont.
Pledged as security 
Carrying value of assets pledged as security 

Certain offi ce equipment is pledged as security for fi nance lease obligations. Refer to note 13.  

Details of properties

Erf 1339, Vorna Valley Extension 21, Gauteng

An independent valuation of the property as at 22 October 2014 valued the property at R7,800,000.

4.     intangible assets

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2014

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2013

2014 2013

cost Accumulated 
amortisation

Carrying value cost Accumulated 
amortisation

Carrying 
value 

Computer software 938,168 (522,191) 415,977 581,296 (375,724) 205,572

Website 80,689 (80,689) - 80,689 (67,187) 13,502

total 1,018,857 (602,880) 415,977 661,985 (442,911) 219,074

Opening balance additions amortisation total
Computer software 291,273 166,272 (251,973) 205,572

Website 53,846 - (40,344) 13,502

total 345,119 166,272 (292,317) 219,074

Opening balance additions amortisation total
Computer software 205,572 410,026 (199,621) 415,977

Website 13,502 - (13,502) -

total 219,074 410,026 (213,123) 415,977

5.     investMents

3,641 shares held in Sanlam Ltd at a fair value of R70.00 per share (2013: R53.24)

fair value information
Fair values are determined annually at Statement of Financial Position date. Investments in listed shares are categorised as Level 1 within 
the fair value hierarchy, with value being determined in relation to a quoted market price.

The Institute has not reclassifi ed any fi nancial assets from cost or amortised cost to fair value or from fair value to cost or amortised cost 
during the current or prior years.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of the debt securities classifi ed as available for sale.

Reconciliation of available-for-sale fi nancial assets

6.     financial assets bY categorY
The accounting policies for fi nancial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

available-for-sale 2014 
r

2013
r

Listed shares at market value 254,870           193,847

Non-current assets 2014 
r

2013
r

Available-for-sale                                                                                                                                   254,870           193,847

Opening balance 193,847 163,008

Unrealised gains disclosed in Other 
Comprehensive Income 61,023 30,839

total 254,870 193,847

2014 2013

loans and 
receivables

available-for- 
sale

total loans and 
receivables

available-for- 
sale

total 

Investments - 254,870 254,870 - 193,847            193,847            

Accounts receivable 3,463,836 - 3,463,836 2,516,206 - 2,516,206

Cash and cash equivalents 23,427,063 - 23,427,063 18,890,489 - 18,890,489

26,890,899 254,870 27,145,769 21,406,695 193,847       21,600,542
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7.     ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable pledged as security
Accounts receivable have not been pledged as security for any other fi nancial obligation.

Credit quality of accounts receivable
The credit quality of debtors that are neither past nor due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to historical repayment trends 
of individual debtors. Credit terms are offered only to members registered on the Institute’s database with valid details. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable mentioned above.

Fair value of accounts receivable
The carrying value of accounts receivable approximates fair value as the provision for impairment of debtors takes into account long 
outstanding amounts owed by members for whom the recoverability is unlikely. In determining the recoverability of debtors, the Institute 
considers the ageing of the receivable, the debtor’s membership status and historical payment trends. The concentration of credit risk is 
limited due to the large membership base.

Accounts receivable past due but not impaired
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:
 

Accounts receivable impaired
As of 31 December 2014, debtors of R883,122 (2013: R 1,127,496) were impaired and provided for.      

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

2014 
R

2013
R

Debtors 4,217,631         3,446,544

Provision for impairment of debtors (883,122)      (1,127,496)

Deposits 16,135              99,285

Prepayments 237,562             76,986

Other receivables 113,192             97,873

3,701,398         2,593,192

2014 
R

2013
R

3 months past due 3,055,353         2,319,048

2014 
R

2013
R

Opening balance (1,127,496) (693,393)

Provision for impairment (1,721,859) (1,039,941)

Amounts written off as uncollectable 1,966,233 12,112

Unused amounts reversed - 593,726

(883,122) (1,127,496)
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8.     cash anD cash eQuivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand
The credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand that are neither past due nor impaired can 
be assessed by reference to historical information about counterparty default rates. None of the fi nancial institutions with which 
bank balances are held defaulted in prior periods and as a result a credit rating of high is ascribed to the fi nancial institutions. 
The Institute’s maximum exposure to credit risk as a result of the bank balances held is limited to the carrying value of these 
balances as detailed above.

Fair value of cash and cash equivalents
There are no differences between the fair value of the cash and cash equivalents and their carrying amount.

9.     builDing reserve

10.   bursarY funD 
The bursary Fund was established to provide for bursaries to be distributed from reserves.

11.   investMent revaluation reserve 

2014 
r

2013
r

bank balances 8,041,034 5,153,460

Short-term deposits 15,380,112 13,729,179

Cash on hand 5,917 7,850

23,427,063 18,890,489

Cession of short-term deposits for overdraft 
facility 500, 000 500, 000

2014 
r

2013
r

balance at beginning of the year 240,000 -

Transfer from Accumulated Funds 240,000 240,000

480,000 240,000

2014 
r

2013
r

balance at beginning of the year 450,000 400,000

Transfer from Accumulated Funds 50,000 50,000

Transfer to Accumulated Funds for 
bursaries awarded (70,000) -

430,000 450,000

2014 
r

2013
r

Available-for-sale fi nancial instruments 224,161 163,137
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12.   DevelopMent funD

13.   finance lease obligation

The Institute leases certain offi ce equipment under fi nance leases.

The average lease term is fi ve years and the average effective borrowing rate was 9% (2013: 9%).

All leases have fi xed repayments and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rent.

The Institute’s obligations under fi nance leases are secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets. Refer note 3.

2014 
r

2013
r

balance at beginning of the year 6,306,242 5,617,492

50% of entrance fees received 388,369 470,280

25% of net surplus 156,168 218,470

6,850,779 6,306,242

Minimum lease payments due 2014 
r

2013
r

within one year 295,165 390,624

in second to fi fth year inclusive                                                                                                                331,169 626,333

626,334 1,016,957

less: future fi nance charges                                                                                                                         (63,139) (132,433)

Present value of minimum lease payments 563,195 884,524

Present value of minimum lease payments 
due

2014 
r

2013
r

within one year 250,391 321,329

in second to fi fth year inclusive                                                                                                                312,804 563,195

Present value of minimum lease payments 563,195 884,524
Non-current liabilities                                                                                                                                  312,804 563,195

Current liabilities 250,391 321,329

563,195 884,524
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12.   DevelopMent funD

13.   finance lease obligation

The Institute leases certain offi ce equipment under fi nance leases.

The average lease term is fi ve years and the average effective borrowing rate was 9% (2013: 9%).

All leases have fi xed repayments and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rent.

The Institute’s obligations under fi nance leases are secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets. Refer note 3.

14.   accounts paYable
 

Fair value of trade and other payables
The accounts payable are interest free and unsecured. The fair value of accounts payable approximates the carrying value as the 
amounts payable are short-term in nature and do not fl uctuate based on external factors.

15.   financial liabilities bY categorY
The accounting policies for fi nancial instruments have been applied to the line items below: 

16.   revenue

2014 
r

2013
r

Creditors 3,241,482 1,207,653

Income received in advance 12,260,955 10,502,778

VAT 2,161,547 1,978,965

Accrued leave pay                                                                                                                                      840,929 669,953

Other payables                                                                                                                                        2,762,887 1,885,282

21,267,800 16,244,631

2014 
r

2013
r

Financial liabilities at 
amortised cost

total Financial liabilities at 
amortised cost

total

Finance lease liabilities                                                                                                                               563,195 563,195 884,524 884,524

Accounts payable                                                                                                                                     6,845,298 6,845,298 3,762,890 3,762,890

total 7,408,493 7,408,493 4,647,414 4,647,414

2014 
r

2013
r

Approved training centres 2,282,410 1,955,031

Entrance and administration fees 1,625,161 1,702,764

membership fees 31,444,343 26,818,037

Professional evaluation 2,147,404 1,979,003

Technical income 205,308 179,884

Other revenue 163,787 19,710

37,868,413 32,654,429
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17.   other incoMe

18.   operating (loss)/surplus
Operating (loss)/surplus for the year is stated after accounting for the following:

19.   investMent revenue

20.   finance costs

2014 
r

2013
r

Advertising 1,520,123 537,418

CPD income 7,291,701 5,862,799

Insurance proceeds 2,306 21,201

Other income - 167,745

8,814,130 6,589,163

2014 
r

2013
r

Premises - contractual amounts 211,831 243,559

Equipment - contractual amounts 117,563 112,117

329,394 355,676

Profi t on disposal of assets - 21,165

Amortisation on intangible assets 213,123 292,317

Depreciation on property, plant and 
equipment 680,700 617,436

Employee costs (excluding defi ned 
contribution funds below) 18,238,056 15,525,692

Amount expensed in respect of defi ned 
contribution funds 1,034,425 974,781

Increase in provision for impairment of 
debtors 1,721,859 446,215

Loss on disposal of assets 10,581 3,854

interest revenue 2014 
r

2013
r

bank 960,886 766,464

2014 
r

2013
r

Finance leases 69,295 96,257

notes to the annual 
financial stateMents cont.
17.   other incoMe

18.   operating (loss)/surplus
Operating (loss)/surplus for the year is stated after accounting for the following:

19.   investMent revenue

20.   finance costs

2014 
r

2013
r

1,520,123 537,418

7,291,701 5,862,799

2,306 21,201

- 167,745

8,814,130 6,589,163

2014 
r

2013
r

Premises - contractual amounts 211,831 243,559

Equipment - contractual amounts 117,563 112,117

329,394 355,676

Profi t on disposal of assets - 21,165

Amortisation on intangible assets 213,123 292,317

Depreciation on property, plant and 680,700 617,436

Employee costs (excluding defi ned 
contribution funds below) 18,238,056 15,525,692

Amount expensed in respect of defi ned 1,034,425 974,781

Increase in provision for impairment of 1,721,859 446,215

Loss on disposal of assets 10,581 3,854

2014 
r

2013
r

960,886 766,464

2014 
r

2013
r

69,295 96,257
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17.   other incoMe

18.   operating (loss)/surplus
Operating (loss)/surplus for the year is stated after accounting for the following:

19.   investMent revenue

20.   finance costs
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21.   taXation
No provision has been made for taxation for 2014 as the Institute is exempt from income tax in terms of Section 30 and 10(1)(cN) of the 
Income Tax Act.

22.   auDitors’ reMuneration

23.   cash generateD froM operations

24.   coMMittee eXpenses

2014 
r

2013
r

Fees 243,218 165,286

2014 
r

2013
r

Surplus for the year 624,669 873,885

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 893,821 917,774

Loss on sale of assets 10,581 -

Interest received - investment (960,886) (766,464)

Finance costs 69,295 96,257

Changes in working capital:
Accounts receivable (1,108,206) 972,213

Accounts payable 5,023,169 6,065,596

4,552,443 8,159,261

2014 
r

2013
r

ARC 66,214 49,611

Board 389,428 433,461

Exco 163,700 101,345

Edcom 262,559 210,846

IC and DC 73,786 96,477

Techcom 96,893 124,108

RADAC (previously Charco) 290,219 244,868

Legislative projects and other 653,631 587,223

1,996,430 1,847,939
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Operating leases – as lessee (expense)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Institute for an offi ce property. The property lease was concluded during 
2014.

26.   contingencies
Professional Indemnity Policy Bonus
The Institute holds the right to a Professional Indemnity Policy bonus, which could result in the Institute receiving a future cash benefi t 
dependent on the outcomes of current and future members’ litigation claims. The amount of the bonus, repayable to the Institute, is 
estimated at R2.9 million.

claims
Legal proceedings have been initiated against the Institute by one of its members. The Institute has set the matter down for fi nalisation. 
The estimated potential liability is R400,000.

27.   KeY ManageMent eMoluMents

28. reMuneration of the boarD

Minimum lease payments due 2014 
r

2013
r

within one year - 150,543

in second to fi fth year inclusive                                                                                                                - 20,683

- 171,226

Executives 2014 
r

2013
r

Short-term benefi ts                                                                                                                                   2,425,157         2,736,216

board arc raDac* Exco Edcom ic and Dc Techcom other fees total

2014

C Dibete 16,000 3,500 5,000 19,500 - - 3,500 8,000 55,500

T Kubheka 20,000 - - 7,000 - - - 8,000 35,000

R Naidoo 16,000 5,000 - - - - - 17,000 38,000

N Ntsinde 20,000 - - - - - - 7,000 27,000

S Olsen 22,000 - 5,000 23,000 3,500 - - 34,750 88,250

A Parker 20,000 - 5,000 16,000 - - - 11,800 52,800

H Pretorius 16,000 7,000 - - - - - 1,100 24,100

A Ramikosi 18,000 1,500 - - - - - - 19,500

H Salie 20,000 - - 7,000 - 3,500 - 49,200 79,700

V Sangoni 16,000 - - - - - - 2,000 18,000

m Seedat 20,000 - 5,000 16,000 - - - 28,000 69,000

B Tamba               12,000      -                      -       -        -                      -                      -              6,000            18,000  

total 216,000 17,000 20,000 88,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 172,850 524,850
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board arc raDac* Exco Edcom ic and Dc Techcom other fees total

2014

C Dibete 16,000 3,500 5,000 19,500 - - 3,500 8,000 55,500

T Kubheka 20,000 - - 7,000 - - - 8,000 35,000

R Naidoo 16,000 5,000 - - - - - 17,000 38,000

N Ntsinde 20,000 - - - - - - 7,000 27,000

S Olsen 22,000 - 5,000 23,000 3,500 - - 34,750 88,250

A Parker 20,000 - 5,000 16,000 - - - 11,800 52,800

H Pretorius 16,000 7,000 - - - - - 1,100 24,100

A Ramikosi 18,000 1,500 - - - - - - 19,500

H Salie 20,000 - - 7,000 - 3,500 - 49,200 79,700

V Sangoni 16,000 - - - - - - 2,000 18,000

m Seedat 20,000 - 5,000 16,000 - - - 28,000 69,000

B Tamba               12,000      -                      -       -        -                      -                      -              6,000            18,000  

total 216,000 17,000 20,000 88,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 172,850 524,850

*Charco was replaced by RADAC in 2014

29.   risK ManageMent
Capital risk management
The Institute has no externally imposed capital requirements.

Financial risk management
The Institute’s activities expose it to a variety of fi nancial risks: market risk (including fair value interest rate risk, cash fl ow interest rate risk 
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Liquidity risk
The Institute’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The Institute manages liquidity risk through an 
ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.

Cash fl ow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities are monitored.

The table below analyses the Institute’s fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining 
period at the statement of fi nancial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual 
undiscounted cash fl ows. balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not signifi cant.

board arc Charco* Exco Edcom ic and Dc Techcom other fees total

2013

C Dibete 14,000 9,000 7,000 14,000 5,500 - 10,500 9,000 69,000

S Gounden 18,000 9,500 - - - - - 4,000 31,500

T Kubheka 18,000 - 3,500 14,000 - - - 7,500 43,000

K Naicker 16,000 - 3,500 7,000 14,000 7,000 10,500 73,700 131,700

R Naidoo 26,000 - 3,500 7,000 - - - 23,072 59,572

N Ntsinde 6,000 - - - - - - - 6,000

S Olsen 30,000 - 10,500 21,000 7,000 - - 36,000 104,500

A Parker 30,000 - - - - - - 5,800 35,800

H Pretorius 26,000 7,000 - - - 23,000 - 2,000 58,000

H Salie 30,000 - 10,500 21,000 14,000 23,000 - 49,025 147,525

V Sangoni 4,000 - - - - - - - 4,000

m Seedat 14,000 - - 3,500 - - - 14,500 32,000

B Tamba               20,000  - - - - - - 6,000 26,000

total 252,000 25,500 38,500 87,500 40,500 53,000 21,000 230,597 748,597

At 31 December 2014                                                                                                                        At 31 December 2013
Less than 1 year Between 1 and 5 years Less than 1 year Between 1 and 5 years

Investments  -          254,870 - 193,847

Accounts receivable 3,463,836                        -  2,516,206                       -

bank balances                                                                                                                                8,041,034                        - 5,153,460                       -

Short-term deposits 15,380,112                        - 13,729,179                       -

Finance lease liabilities                                                                                                                              (250,391)             (312,804) (321,329)         (563,195) 

Accounts payable                                                                                                                                     (6,845,298)                       - (3,762,890)                      -

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEmENTS |  |  NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEmENTS 93



south african institute of professional accountants
(Registration number 069 956 NPO)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014

notes to the annual 
financial stateMents cont.
Interest rate risk
At 31 December 2014, if interest rates on Rand-denominated borrowings had been 1% higher/lower with all other variables held 
constant, surplus for the year would have been R 228,141 (2013: R 188,826) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest 
expense on fl oating rate borrowings.

The Institute’s interest rate risk arises mainly from cash and cash equivalents and fi nance leases.

Cash fl ow interest rate risk

Fair value interest rate risk

Credit risk
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The Institute only deposits cash with major banks 
with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Accounts receivable comprise a widespread membership base. management evaluates credit risk relating to members on an ongoing 
basis.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

Price risk 
The Institute is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the Institute and classifi ed on the statement 
of fi nancial position as available-for-sale. The Institute is not exposed to commodity price risk. To manage its price risk arising from 
investments in equity securities, the Institute does not hold a signifi cant portion of its assets in equity securities.

If the equity prices had increased/decreased by 1% with all other variables held constant, the surplus for the year would have been 
R 2,548 (2013: R 1,938) lower/higher.

Post-tax surplus for the year would increase/decrease as a result of gains or losses on equity securities classifi ed as at fair value through 
surplus or defi cit. Other components of equity would increase/decrease as a result of gains or losses on equity securities classifi ed as 
available-for-sale. 

Financial instrument                                                                                                                            current interest rate Due in less 
than a year 

Cash in current banking institutions 0.05 % 8,041,034

Call account 4.15 % 15,380,112

Credit cards payable 15.00 % 43,860 

Financial instrument                                                                                                                            current interest rate Due in less 
than a year 

Due in one 
to fi ve years

Finance lease liabilities 9.00 % 250,391            312,804

Financial instrument                                                                                                                            2014 
r

2013
r

Investments 254,870 193,847

Accounts receivable 3,463,836 2,516,206

bank balances 8,041,034 5,153,460

Short-term deposits 15,380,112 13,729,179
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DetaileD incoMe stateMent
note(s) 2014 

r
2013

r

revenue

Approved training centres 2,282,410 1,955,031

Entrance and administration fees 1,625,161 1,702,764

membership fees 31,444,343 26,818,037

Professional evaluation 2,147,404 1,979,003

Technical income 205,308 179,884

Other income 163,787 19,710

16 37,868,413 32,654,429

Other income
Advertising 1,520,123 537,418

CPD income 7,291,701 5,862,799

Insurance proceeds 2,306 21,201

Interest received 19 960,886 766,464

Other income - 167,745

9,775,016 7,355,627

Expenses (See below) (46,949,465) (39,039,914)
operating surplus 18 693,964 970,142
Finance costs 20 (69,295) (96,257)

Surplus for the year 624,669 873,885

note(s) 2014 
r

2013
r

operating expenses

Advertising and exhibitions (2,239,860) (1,843,714)

Approved training centres (1,619,536) (675,255)

Attendance fees (974,703) (882,528)

Auditors remuneration 22 (243,218) (165,286)

bank charges (286,837) (253,241)

DetaileD incoMe stateMent
note(s) 2014 

r
2013

r

Approved training centres 2,282,410 1,955,031

Entrance and administration fees 1,625,161 1,702,764

31,444,343 26,818,037

Professional evaluation 2,147,404 1,979,003

205,308 179,884

163,787 19,710

16 37,868,413 32,654,429

1,520,123 537,418

7,291,701 5,862,799

2,306 21,201

19 960,886 766,464

- 167,745

9,775,016 7,355,627

(46,949,465) (39,039,914)
18 693,964 970,142
20 (69,295) (96,257)

624,669 873,885

note(s) 2014 
r

2013
r

Advertising and exhibitions (2,239,860) (1,843,714)

Approved training centres (1,619,536) (675,255)

(974,703) (882,528)

22 (243,218) (165,286)

(286,837) (253,241)
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DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
Note(s) 2014 

R
2013

R

Revenue

Approved training centres 2,282,410 1,955,031

Entrance and administration fees 1,625,161 1,702,764

membership fees 31,444,343 26,818,037

Professional evaluation 2,147,404 1,979,003

Technical income 205,308 179,884

Other income 163,787 19,710

16 37,868,413 32,654,429

Other income
Advertising 1,520,123 537,418

CPD income 7,291,701 5,862,799

Insurance proceeds 2,306 21,201

Interest received 19 960,886 766,464

Other income - 167,745

9,775,016 7,355,627

Expenses (See below) (46,949,465) (39,039,914)
Operating surplus 18 693,964 970,142
Finance costs 20 (69,295) (96,257)

Surplus for the year 624,669 873,885

Note(s) 2014 
R

2013
R

Operating expenses

Advertising and exhibitions (2,239,860) (1,843,714)

Approved training centres (1,619,536) (675,255)

Attendance fees (974,703) (882,528)

Auditors remuneration 22 (243,218) (165,286)

bank charges (286,837) (253,241)
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board training (25,787) (57,881)

Bursaries (70,000) -

CPD expenses (4,860,211) (4,072,933)

CoTE expenses (1,105,734) (947,435)

Computer expenses (1,404,499) (1,349,770)

Consulting and professional fees (2,131,986) (2,074,370)

Depreciation and amortisation (893,821) (917,774)

Donations (200) (5,746)

Employee costs (19,272,482) (16,500,473)

Entertainment (13,649) (31,424)

Insurance (130,847) (182,551)

Lease rentals on operating lease (329,394) (355,676)

Legal expenses (607,397) (450,147)

Loss on disposal of assets (10,581) (3,854)

motor vehicle expenses (31,009) (26,847)

National convention - (36,215)

Postage (203,273) (135,119)

Printing and stationery (429,370) (430,567)

Professional evaluations (906,178) (796,828)

Promotions (346,682) (264,613)

Provision for impairment of debtors (1,721,859) (446,216)

Publications (1,257,133) (1,012,911)

Repairs and maintenance (171,397) (200,872)

Security (18,400) (21,040)

Staff welfare (558,324) (370,830)

Strategic operations (287,193) (383,033)

Subscriptions (1,280,831) (1,065,491)

Telephone and fax (797,041) (821,473)

Travel - local (995,523) (752,679)

Travel - overseas (746,168) (791,824)

Utilities (377,993) (337,391)

Venue and catering (246,434) (362,949)

Website expenses (353,915) (12,958)

Total (46,949,465) (39,039,914)

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual fi nancial statements and is unaudited.
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